
DALLAS CITY COUNCIL
Monday, April 15, 2013

Council Chambers

The Dallas City Council met in regular session on Monday, April 15, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall with Mayor Brian Dalton presiding. 

ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Council members present: Council President LaVonne Wilson, Councilor Jim Brown, Councilor 
Jim Fairchild, Councilor Kelly Gabliks, Councilor Beth Jones, Councilor Jackie Lawson, 
Councilor Kevin Marshall, Councilor Murray Stewart, and Councilor Ken Woods, Jr.

Also present were: City Manager Ron Foggin, City Attorney Lane Shetterly, Chief of Police John 
Teague, Fire Chief Bill Hahn, Community Development/Operations Director Jason Locke, 
Engineering and Environmental Services Director Fred Braun, Finance Director Cecilia Ward, 
City Recorder Emily Gagner, and Recording Secretary Jeremy Teal.

Mayor Dalton led the Pledge of Allegiance.

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Mayor Dalton asked the audience members to limit their speeches to five minutes.  

Lori Johnson, 14599 Forest Hill Dr, Dallas, Oregon, stated she was concerned about the length of 
time given to acquire a tenant in the proposed vacant building ordinance. She noted the City was 
scaring people off with some of the requirements outlined in the ordinance. She noted she liked 
our downtown and would like to see it cleaned up.

Mark Maxwell, 212 Hewlett Lane, Newberg, Oregon, stated the Blue Dolphin Swim Team was 
celebrating 50 years and presented the City and Council with a plaque commemorating the team’s
success and thanked the City for their continued support. He noted the team would have an open 
house Saturday, April 20, 2013 at the Aquatic Center from 2:00 to 4:00 pm.

Catherine Camarena, 998 SW Maple, Dallas, Oregon, stated the speeding on Maple Drive was out
of control. She noted that several animals had been killed due to the speeding traffic and she was 
concerned for the well-being of the neighborhood and the school children on the street. She 
requested the police do something before a child was hurt or killed.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

There were none.  

CONSENT AGENDA

The April 1, 2013, City Council meeting minutes were removed from the consent agenda.

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA

April 1, 2013, City Council meeting minutes

Councilor Lawson stated she would like to clarify her statement. She noted that $5 or $8 for a 
garage sale permit when it was a $3,000 issue was in the context of when she spoke about City 
Council budgets in the past wanting to take those down to smaller dollars and the response she 
received at the time were those were small amounts and we don’t need to worry about those size 
dollars.

It was moved by Councilor Gabliks to approve the minutes as presented.  The motion was duly 
seconded and carried unanimously.

REPORTS OR COMMENTS FROM THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

Council President Wilson stated Councilor Woods received a nice compliment from 
Commissioner Pope concerning MWACT and the work he had done to bring money and 
roadwork to our City.

REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER AND STAFF

MARCH FINANCIAL REPORT

Mr. Foggin stated there was one department that had budget issues and would need to be dealt 
with. Councilor Brown asked where the Ambulance Department was deviating from the budget. 
Mr. Foggin stated that 75% of the fiscal year was gone, and any number over 75% meant the 
department had overspent.



City Council Meeting
April 15, 2013
Page 2

Councilor Brown asked if notes could be used in the financial reports to introduce any possible 
issues. Mr. Foggin stated he would speak with the Finance Department.

OTHER

Mr. Foggin advised that the citizen survey was underway. He noted that questions in the handout 
he provided them represent the information the City was asking from the citizens. He stated that 
he didn’t have any results to present. He noted that the goal was for 400 completed surveys.

Councilor Brown asked why there was a 6 on the survey. Mr. Foggin noted that was there for 
when a citizen had no opinion on the subject. Councilor Brown asked who was responsible for the
survey. Mr. Foggin responded that he was.

Councilor Marshall asked how long it took to complete the survey. Mr. Foggin responded the 
average time was twelve minutes.

Councilor Marshall asked if the number of people that refused to take the survey were being 
tracked. Mr. Foggin stated they were. He noted that the people that didn’t finish the survey were
tracked as well.

RESOLUTIONS

Resolution No. 3266 – A resolution establishing a schedule of rates for ambulance and
emergency medical services and Dallas FireMed; and repealing Resolution 3265 and readopting 
and repealing Resolution 3219.

Mr. Foggin noted that one of the fees was misstated on the previous resolution and this clarified 
that.

A roll call vote was taken and Mayor Dalton declared Resolution No. 3266 to have PASSED BY 
A UNANIMOUS VOTE with Councilor Jim Brown, Councilor Jim Fairchild, Councilor Kelly 
Gabliks, Councilor Beth Jones, Councilor Jackie Lawson, Councilor Marshall, Councilor Murray 
Stewart, Council President LaVonne Wilson, and Councilor Ken Woods, Jr. voting YES.

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE

Ordinance No. 1756 – An ordinance amending Dallas City Code Section 7.530, relating to 
garage sales.

Councilor Jones stated she believed the City should give people an option to make their own sign 
and make them follow the City Code. She commented that the City Code stated that signs 
couldn’t be placed in right of way and only on private property and the garage sale signs were not 
following that code now. She noted that the fee should be large enough to cover the code 
enforcement officer’s time to deal with the handmade signs. She noted that by forcing people into 
renting a sign the City might end up with non-compliance issues.

Councilor Fairchild stated that citizens were not required to take a sign. He asked if the City 
would limit the amount of signs that someone could put up.

Councilor Jones noted that according to the City Code, a citizen was allowed one off premise sign
to direct people to the sale and one at the sale itself. She stated the signs were to be on private 
property with permission and out of the right of way. She stated that whether a citizen used the 
City sign or they made their own sign, they would still be held to the same City Code.

Councilor Lawson noted that she supported Councilor Jones’ suggestion. She suggested that once 
the online bill pay was implemented the permit could be filled out and paid online and that would 
eliminate staff time.

Councilor Marshall stated he had gotten a lot of feedback concerning the garage sale permit fee 
and the public felt like the City was nickel and diming them. He commented that he was not 
concerned about the amount of the permit fee, but the implementation of a fee at all.

Councilor Lawson stated she was concerned about adding additional fees because once a fee was 
added, then they were incrementally increased often. She asked with the implementation of a 
permit fee with the sign deposit if citizens would have to write two checks or if staff would have 
to write a rebate check.

It was moved by Councilor Jones to remove the ordinance from the agenda and send it back to 
Administrative committee. It was seconded by Councilor Lawson. 
Councilor Gabliks indicated she wanted the ordinance to stay in the Council and be voted up or 
down. She commented that she didn’t understand why things kept getting sent back to committee.



City Council Meeting
April 15, 2013
Page 3

Councilor Jones noted that some things needed further discussion.

Councilor Brown stated that Councilor Lawson had a good point in the financial side of things. 
He asked how that transaction would take place.

Mr. Foggin stated the City could hold a credit card number, take a check, or hold cash. Councilor 
Brown asked if the Finance Department felt that would be a time consuming issue. Ms. Ward 
stated that it wouldn’t.

Councilor Lawson suggested having a fee only for a second garage sale.

It was moved by Councilor Jones to remove the ordinance from the agenda and send it back to 
Administrative committee. It was seconded by Councilor Lawson. 

The motion failed by majority vote with Councilor Jim Brown, Councilor Jim Fairchild, 
Councilor Kelly Gabliks, Councilor Murray Stewart, Council President LaVonne Wilson, and 
Councilor Ken Woods, Jr. voting NO and Councilor Beth Jones, Councilor Jackie Lawson, and 
Councilor Marshall voting YES.

Mayor Dalton declared Ordinance No. 1756 to have passed its first reading.

SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE

OTHER BUSINESS

Councilor Fairchild asked to have the police investigate Maple Street for speeding. Mr. Foggin 
stated he would have the police look into it.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m.

Read and approved this _______ day of _________________________ 2013.

_______________________________________
                                     Mayor

ATTEST:

_________________________________________
City Manager


	OLE_LINK1
	OLE_LINK2
	OLE_LINK3
	OLE_LINK4

